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Chamberlain, Lisa

From: Leslie

Sent: May 31, 2019 12:02 PM

To: Lakewood Beach Community Council; Chamberlain, Lisa

Cc: Toffoletti, Paul; Pearson, Maria; Wilson, Maureen; Farr, Jason; Collins, Chad; Danko,
John-Paul; Clark, Brad; Johnson, Brenda; Whitehead, Terry; Partridge, Judi

Subject: Re: Drakes Drive Street Naming Motion - June 18th Planning Committee

Hi All: we love Lakewood Beach Road!
Best regards, Leslie and Walter ®ovro -

Sent from my Bell Samsung device over Canada's largest network.

———————— Original message --------

From: Lakewood Beach Community Council

Date: 2019-05-31 11:20 a.m. (GMT-05:00)

To: "Chamberlain, Lisa" <Lisa.Chamberlain@hamilton.ca>

Cc: "Toffoletti, Paul" <Paul.Toffoletti@hamilton.ca>, Maria Pearson <maria.pearson@hamilton.ca>,
Maureen.wilson@hamilton.ca, jason.farr@hamilton.ca, "Collins, Chad" <chad.collins@hamilton.ca>, john-
paul.danko@hamilton.ca, brad.clark@hamilton.ca, brenda.johnson@hamilton.ca, terry.whitehead@hamilton.ca,
judi.partridge@hamilton.ca

Subject: Drakes Drive Street Naming Motion - June 18th Planning Committee

Good Morning Everyone,

As per the attached Public Notice in yesterday's edition of the Stoney Creek News, a motion is coming forward
from Clr Pearson to rename a portion of the municipally signed Drakes Drive (registered on title as North
Service Road) to Parkedge Drive.

Coincidentally, we were scheduled to speak to Committee on May 14th with a request to waive the street
naming fee, so we could engage the community and allow those of us who live in the area submit suggestions.

No disrespect to Councillor Pearson or the request of Parkedge Drive, but we've had some suggestions already
which we'd like considered. These suggestions might be more significant to the area, it's history and the
community. By way of b.c.c. to the members of LBCC, we are also seeking additional suggestions from the
residents. A list of pre-approved street names is also attached, however we've been told suggestions do not
have to match the list.

To date, the following suggestions have been made (in no particular order) along with some context :

1. Sears Drive - Although the city tends to shy away from naming streets after politicians, in the 80s Bill
Sears was also a principle of the engineering firm involved in developing Lakewood Landing sub-
division (Grays, Drakes, Oceanic, Lakegate) - the adjacent lands to the north. Bill also lives in our
community.
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From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Claudia Guerrero

June 5,2019 9:14 PM

Lakewood Beach Community Council

Chamberlain, Lisa; Toffoletti, Paul; Pearson, Maria; Wilson, Maureen; Farr, Jason; Collins,
Chad; Danko, John-Paul; Clark, Brad; Johnson, Brenda; Whitehead, Terry; Partridge, Judi
Re: Drakes Drive Street Naming Motion - June 18th Planning Committee

I vote for Maria’s Way. She’s amazing and has always been great with my kids!!

Sent from my iPhone

On May 31, 2019, at 11:21, Lakewood Beach Community Council -

Good Morning Everyone,

As per the attached Public Notice in yesterday's edition of the Stoney Creek News, a motion is
coming forward from Clr Pearson to rename a portion of the municipally signed Drakes Drive
(registered on title as North Service Road) to Parkedge Drive.

Coincidentally, we were scheduled to speak to Committee on May 14th with a request to waive
the street naming fee, so we could engage the community and allow those of us who live in the
area submit suggestions.

No disrespect to Councillor Pearson or the request of Parkedge Drive, but we've had some
suggestions already which we'd like considered. These suggestions might be more significant
to the area, it's history and the community. By way of b.c.c. to the members of LBCC, we are
also seeking additional suggestions from the residents. A list of pre-approved street names is
also attached, however we've been told suggestions do not have to match the list.

To date, the following suggestions have been made (in no particular order) along with some

context :

1. Sears Drive - Although the city tends to shy away from naming streets after politicians,
in the 80s Bill Sears was also a principle of the engineering firm involved in developing
Lakewood Landing sub-division {Grays, Drakes, Oceanic, Lakegate) - the adjacent lands
to the north. Bill also lives in our community.

2. MclLeod Road - Back 100 years ago, a W. MacLeod owned land just west of the Big
Pond (spelled Mac) One of the first residents in our developed area was the
McLeods. Mrs. MclLeod passed away last year in her 98th year. however her children,
grandchildren and great grandchildren are still very much of the community and live

here.

3. Maria's Way - For our dear friend Maria Ferreira who we love dearly & is an inspiration
to everyone who's lives she touched in the community
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From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

FYA

Carson, Katie

June 12, 2019 8:52 AM
Chamberlain, Lisa

FW: re-naming of Drakes Drive

From: Stanley Kurak -

Sent: June 11, 2019 7:33 PM
To: clerk@hamilton.ca

Subject: re-naming of Drakes Drive

I would like to add my voice in this matter. ,
My choice for a new name would be LAKEWOOD BEACH RD.

Thank you,
Stan Kurak

Stan F. Kurak, RHU,CRA

This transmission is intended for use only by the addressee(s) and may contain privileged/confidential information. It
must not be read or distributed to any other person. Please notify the sender immediately if you receive this transmission

inerror




Page 6 of 75

Chamberlain, Lisa

From: Pearson, Julie

Sent: June 12, 2019 8:35 AM

To: Chamberlain, Lisa

Cc: Carson, Katie

Subject: FW: Renaming Drakes Rd Stoney Creek. June 18th

From: Sharon Williams

Sent: June 12, 2019 6:58 AM

To: clerk@hamilton.ca

Subject: Renaming Drakes Rd Stoney Creek. June 18th

{ wish to be included in renaming above street name.
I am a resident of this community and wish my preferred mane change to be Lakewood Beach Road

Please present my vote at the June 18th committee meeting be include
Unfortunately I am not able to attend in person

Sharon Williams

Sent from my iPad
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From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

FYA

From: Pearson, Julie

Sent: June 12, 2019 8:34 AM

To: Carson, Katie

Carson, Katie

June 12,2019 8:52 AM
Chamberlain, Lisa

FW: Re-NAMING OF DRAKES DRIVE

Subject: FW: Re-NAMING OF DRAKES DRIVE

From: Renee Kurak -

Sent: June 11, 2019 7:33 PM
To: clerk@hamilton.ca

Subject: Re-NAMING OF DRAKES DRIVE

My choice would be Lakewood Beach Rd.

Regards

Renee Kurak
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Chamberlain, Lisa

From: Carson, Katie

Sent: June 13, 2019 12:42 PM

To: Chamberlain, Lisa

Subject: FW: Letter submitted into June 18th Planning committee meeting agenda

From: Pearson, Julie

Sent: June 13, 2019 12:40 PM
To: Carson, Katie

Subject: FW: Letter submitted into June 18th Planning committee meeting agenda

From: Sherry Hayes -

Sent: June 13, 2019 12:10 PM

To: clerk@hamilton.ca

Subject: Letter submitted into June 18th Planning committee meeting agenda

To City Clerk and Building Committee Council,

Please include my letter into the June 18th Planning Committee meeting agenda regarding the renaming of part of
Drakes Drive, Stoney Creek.

As a community, we feel it is important that the community residents have a strong and perhaps final say on the change
of a street name that brings us into our lakefront community. As the name of the community association has been
previously voted on - and chosen to honour the combination of names from our historical subdivisions (Community
Beach Gardens and Lakewood Landing) - hence culminating in the name Lakewood Beach, it seems only and absolutely
fitting for the new street name to become Lakewood Beach Road. Please consider this as the official name to properly,
correctly and respectfully rename this street in OUR community.

Respectfully submitted,
Sherry Hayes,
Shoreliner Resident
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From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

From: Deborah Martin-
Sent: June 13, 2019 1:30 PM
To: clerk@hamilton.ca

Pearson, Julie

June 13, 2019 2:31 PM

Chamberlain, Lisa

Carson, Katie _

FW: Re June 18th Planning Committee

Subject: Re June 18th Planning Committee

To Planning Committee Councillors and City Staff

Please add my name to the June 18th planning committee agenda. 1 would like the presently named Drakes Drive to be
renamed Lakewood Beach Road to honour 2 areas of our local history. This is our community and we would appreciate
having input into an area and street which we drive through every day.
Thank you for your consideration. Best regards, Debbie Martin
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Chamberlain, Lisa

From: Pearson, Julie

Sent: June 13,2019 2:31 PM

To: Chamberlain, Lisa

Cc: Carson, Katie

Subject: FW: Planning Committee Meeting June 18th Agenda

From: Jerry Andreatta

Sent: June 13,2019 1:51 PM

To: clerk@hamilton.ca

Subject: Planning Committee Meeting June 18th Agenda

Please add my letter to the June 18th Planning Committee meeting Agenda

To Planning Committee Councillors and City Staff,

As a resident of this beautiful area | am in favour with the name change to Lakewood Beach Rd ( currently Drakes Dr ) in
honour of Community Beach Gardens area almost one hundred year history, combined with Lakewood Landing. Thank
you.

Jerry Andreatta

Stoney Creek, Ont




PLANNING COMMITTEE

Request for Exemption from Planning Act Section 45(1.3) for
By-law No. 17-193 respecting 100 Hamilton St N



« By-law No. 17-193
approved September 13,
2017.

« Site Plan conditionally
approved on July 24, 2018
for an apartment building
with 69 units.

e Current owners proposing
Retirement Home use
with 143 units.

BACKGROUND

Figure 2. Proposed Development
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REQUIRED VARIANCES

Minor Variance to the site specific by-law
is required as follows:

1.

To permit kitchenettes in the dwelling
units.

To reduce the number of loading
spaces required.

Typical Floor Plan

Scale: 1:1000

I e e
0 10 20 30 40

Minor Variance No. 2

i

Figure 3. Minor Variance No. 2



REQUEST TO COMMITTEE

« Section 45(1.3) of the Planning Act ﬂ‘u
prevents the amendment of a site- v _
specific Zoning By-law for two years.

« We respectfully request that =
Committee and Council permit the 1 I
application for a Minor Variance, in |k ;
keeping with Section 45(1.4) of the Act. w Dvcpitee //;4— |
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Figure 4. Revised Site Plan for DA-17-230



CITY OF HAMILTON

MOTION

COMMITTEE DATE: June 18, 2019
MOVED BY COUNCILLOR ... e s s e r s e e
SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR. ... e e e s r s s e e e e

Authorization for 100 Hamilton Street GP Inc. to apply for Variances to a By-law for
Lands Located at 100 Hamilton Street North.

WHEREAS Bill 73, Smart Growth for our Communities Act, 2015 placed a moratorium for
minor variance applications within 2 years of passing a site specific zoning by-law
amendment;

WHEREAS the application as presented in report PED17157 for 100 Hamilton Street
Morth was approved on September 13, 2017;

WHEREAS Council may waive this moratonium on a site specific basis per Section 45(1.4)
of the Planning Act to allow the applicant to make an application to the Committee of

Adjustment;

WHEREAS it would then be within the authority of the Committee of Adjustment to assess
the merits of the application and to make a decision; and,

WHEREAS the applicant is interested in seeking a minor variance to address a matter
related to loading and potentially other matters.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

That 100 Hamilton Street GP Inc. be authorized to apply for variances to a by-law for lands
located at 100 Hamilton Street North.
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WELCOME TO THE CITY OF HAMILTON

PLANNING COMMITTEE

June 18, 2019

Presented by: George Zajac PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT



Page 17 of 75

PED19104 - (zAc-17-058 & UHOPA-17-25)

Applications for an Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment
for Lands Located at 305 and 311 Garner Road West, Ancaster.

Presented by: George Zajac

PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
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Appendix A

@ Site Location

Location Map

Hamilton
PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
File Name/Number: Date:
ZAC-17-058 & UHOPA-17-25 April 30, 2019
e Scale: Planner/Technician:
Appendix "A' TS, GZINB

Subject Property

305 and 311 Gamner Road West

EEEEE Block1- Change in zoning fram Agricultural (Holding) "H-A-496"
Zone, Modified, Agricultural "A-216" Zone, Medified and Rural
Industri 5-262" Zone, Modified to Residential Multiple
"RM4-70Q" Zone, Modified

7 Black 2 - Change in zoning from the Agricultural "A-216" Zone,

m Modified and Rﬂm\ \ndus(ngal “M5-262”920ne. Medified to
Residential Multiple "RM4-701" Zone, Modified

Block 3 - Change in zoning from the Agricultural (Holding)

s "H-A-496" Zone, Modified to Residential Multiple "RM4-702"

Zone, Modified

Block 4 - Change in zoning from the Agricultural (Holding)

"H-A-486" Zone, Modified and Rural Industrial "M5-262" Zane,

Modified to Residential Multiple "RM4-703" Zone, Modified

Block 5§ - Change in zoning from the Agricultural (Holding)

"H-A-486" Zone, Modified to Residential Multiple "RM4-704"

Zone, Modified

Lands to be added to Zoning By-law No. 05-200

Key Map - Ward 12

PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
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305 & 311 Garner Road West

SUBJECT PROPERTY
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Looking at the Subject Lands.
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Looking at the Subject Lands.
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Looking at the Subject Lands.
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Looking across Garner Road West.
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Looking across Garner Road West.
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Looking west along Garner Road West.
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Looking south at the Subject Lands.
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Looking south at the Subject Lands.




Standing at Vansickle Court.
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Appendix B
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Appendix B
DRAFT Amendment No

to the Urban Hamilton Official Plan
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Delete Site Specific Palicy - Area "B"
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Residential 2a" to "Low Density Residential 3a"
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LEGAL DESCRIPTIGN
K PART OF LOTS 39 AND 4C, CONCESSION 3
F GEOGRAPHIC TOWNSHIP OF ANCASTER
b GITY OF HAMILTON
i
SITE STATISTICS
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THANK YOU FOR ATTENDING

THE CITY OF HAMILTON PLANNING COMMITTEE

PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
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WELCOME TO THE CITY OF HAMILTON

PLANNING COMMITTEE

June 18, 2019

Presented by: Daniel Barnett PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
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PED19117 - (zac-19-014)

Application for Zoning By-law Amendment for Lands Located at
116 and 120 Barnesdale Avenue North, Hamilton

Presented by: Daniel Barnett

Hamilton PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
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Location Map

Hamilton
PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
File Name/Number: Date:
ZAC-19-014 May 15, 2019
s T Scale: Planner/Technician:
Appendix "A’ NT.S DB/AL

Subject Property

m Block 1 - Part of 116 - 120

Barnesdale Avenue North
m Block 2 - Part of 116 - 120
Barnesdale Avenue North

Block 3 - 760 Barton Street East

Key Map - Ward 3

PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
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SUBJECTPROPERTY [ __| 116 & 120 Barnsdale Avnue North & 760 Barton Street East, Hamilton
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Alleyway Status

Hamilton
PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

File Name/Number: Date:
ZAC-19-014 Alleyway Status

May 15, 2019
T Scale: Planner/Technician:
Appendix "A e DBAVS

Subject Property

[7777]  Block 1-Partof 116 - 120

Barnesdale Avenue North

Block 2 - Part of 116 - 120
Barnesdale Avenue North

Block 3- 760 Barton Street East

Privately Owned Alleyway

Publically Assumed Alleyway

Key Map - Ward 3

PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
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Existing semi-detached dwelling on the subject property, as seen from Barnesdale Avenue North looking east
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Existing place of worship located at 728 and 732 Barton Street East, located to the west of the
subject property, as seen from Barnesdale Avenue North looking north west
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as seen from Barnesdale Avenue North looking east
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Existing alleyway,
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Photo 6

< DO

Rear of the subject property, as seen from alleyway looking south east

Hamﬂton PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
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Edward Street frontage of the subject property, located between the properties at 23 and 25 Edward Street, as seen from Edward Street looking north

Hamilton PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
12
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i

Existing dwellings at 11 to 25 Edward Street, located to the south of the subject property, as seen from Edward Street looking north
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1 &
Existing building at 760 Barton Street East, as seen from Barton Street East looking south east
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

= PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
(1Rl Planning Division
Hamilton
TO: Chair and Members
Planning Committee
COMMITTEE DATE: June 18, 2019

SUBJECT/REPORT NO: | Official Plan Amendment - Urban Boundary Expansion:
Studies and Fees (PED19146) (City Wide)

WARD(S) AFFECTED: City Wide

PREPARED BY: Heather Travis (905) 546-2424 Ext. 4168
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RECOMMENDATION \/

(a) That staff be directed to provide.publ\c notice, in accordance with the City’s Public
Notice By-law No. 07-351, of a proposal to amend the 2019 Tariff of Fees By-law
to establish a new fee for an Official Plan Amendment — Urban Boundary
Expansion in the amount of $67,875, to be broken into two phases (Phase 1 being
$56,204 and Phase 2 being $11,671);

(b) That staff be directed to prepare a Peer Review Protocol, including a Peer Review
Cost Acknowledgement Agreement, to outline the process for the completion of
peer reviews of studies required in the review of an Official Plan Amendment —
Urban Boundary Expansion application, with the cost of the peer reviews to be
borne by the applicant.

(c) That staff, in conjunction with Procurement Division, Corporate Services, be
directed to:

() Hire CN Watson and Associates to peer review Financial Impact
Assessments submitted as part of Official Plan Amendment(s) for Urban
Boundary Expansions, with an upset limit of $150,000 for a period of 12
months;
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(i) Investigate and, if feasible, undertake a competitive Request for Proposal
(RFP) to establish a roster of consultants for Financial Impact Assessments
similar to the Professional and Consultant Services Roster 2019-2020 (C-12-
06-18); and,

(iiiy Expand the scope of work in Category 25 — Land use Planning Services -
Policy, Zoning and Urban Design from the Professional and Consultant
Services Roster 2019-2020 to include agricultural related planning matters.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Growth Plan, 2019, has introduced new policies which permit a landowner to
privately initiate certain Official Plan Amendment (OPA) applications (expansion of the
urban boundary and conversion of employment land) in advance of the completion of
the Municipal Comprehensive Review (MCR). With regard to an OPA application for
urban boundary expansion, review of such an application requires a conformity test
against several criteria identified in the Growth Plan and the City’s Urban Hamilton
Official Plan (UHOP), addressing key areas including servicing capacity, transportation,
natural heritage, agricultural impact and planning principles. The review of such an
application is complex, involves several City departments and divisions, requires
significant technical review time by staff and peer reviewers, and must be completed
within a limited timeframe to meet Planning Act requirements.

In response to Council’s request, this Report identifies the potential studies that will be
required in the review of Official Plan Amendment — Urban Boundary Expansion. The
Report recommends a process for ensuring that required peer reviews of the studies will
be completed in a timely manner, and further, recommends an increased application fee
for this type of Official Plan Amendment.

With regard to an OPA application for employment land conversion, while still complex,
this application requires fewer studies and staff resources than the urban boundary
expansion OPA. Further, as part of the background work on the MCR, staff have
completed a preliminary employment land review, including preliminary assessment of
the requests for conversion. The review will be updated to reflect changes in the 2019
Growth Plan and taken forward to Committee / Council for consideration, with
anticipated timing being in the fall of this year. Therefore, staff are not recommending
increased fees for employment land conversion OPAs.

Alternatives for Consideration — See Page 20
FINANCIAL — STAFFING — LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Financial: OPA application fee: Staff are recommending an increase in the OPA fee
for urban boundary expansion to $67,875.
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Peer Reviews for Financial Impact assessments and Agricultural related
matters:

Since the staff do not have the expertise and given the short timeline to
process these applications, staff is requesting that:

1. Hire CN Watson and Associates to peer review Financial Impact
Assessments submitted as part of Official Plan Amendment(s) for
Urban Boundary Expansions, with an upset limit of $150,000 for a
period of 12 months;

2. Investigate and, if feasible, undertake a competitive Request for
Proposal (RFP) to establish a roster of consultants for Financial
Impact Assessments similar to the Professional and Consultant
Services Roster 2019-2020 (C-12-06-18); and,

3. Expand the scope of work in Category 25 — Land Use Planning
Services - Policy, Zoning and Urban Design from the Professional
and Consultant Services Roster 2019-2020 to include agricultural
related planning matters. There are three consultants on the
current roster that could complete the assignments provided the
firm has the necessary expertise. The cost of these peer reviews
would be subject to the hourly rates and disbursements under the
current roster contract (C--02-06-18))

Staffing: Dedicated staff resources from multiple Departments / Divisions
will be required to review and respond to an OPA application for
urban boundary expansion within the required timeframe. The
required resources can be absorbed with the existing staff FTE
complement, but responding to the application for urban boundary
expansion or employment land conversion will require existing
work to be re-prioritized which may cause other delays.

Legal: N/A
HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

On May 2, 2019, the Province released the new Growth Plan “A Place to Grow”
(“Growth Plan, 2019"). The new Growth Plan introduces several new policy directions,
including policies which permit a private landowner to submit an application to expand
the urban boundary in advance of the completion of the City’s Municipal Comprehensive
Review (MCR), and a policy which permits lands within certain employment areas to be
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converted to non-employment designation in advance of the MCR. These policies are
in contrast to the previous Growth Plan which only permitted urban boundary expansion
and employment land conversion to be considered as part of the MCR.

On June 7, 2019, Bill 108 received Royal Assent. Amongst many other changes, Bill
108 amended the Planning Act to reduce the timeframes for making decisions related to
an Official Plan Amendment from 210 days to 120 days. This reduction in.timeframe for
decision making, combined with the Growth Plan changes noted above, will create
challenges for the City in responding to an Official Plan Amendment — Urban Boundary
Expansion application within the required timeframe.

In light of the above changes, at the Planning Committee of June 4, 2019, Committee
provided the following direction to staff;

“That staff be directed to review the Planning Application fees for Private Urban
Boundary Expansion applications and Private Employment Lands Conversion
applications pursuant to changes in the Ontario Growth Plan; and,

(a) That staff be directed to report back to the Planning Committee with requisite
studies and a corresponding fee structure; and,

(b) That staff be directed to report back to the Planning Committee with
recommendations on June 18, 2019.”

POLICY IMPLICATIONS AND LEGISLATED REQUIREMENTS

Planning Act

The following subsections of Section 22 of the Planning Act provide that a council
decision to refuse to adopt an Official Plan Amendment to expand the urban boundary
or remove land from an area of employment cannot be appealed:

“Appeals restricted re certain amendments

(7.1) Despite subsection (7) and subsections 17 (36) and (40), there is no appeal
in respect of,

(a) arefusal or failure to adopt an amendment described in subsection (7.2); or
(b) a refusal or failure to approve an amendment described in subsection (7.2).
2006, c. 23, s. 11 (6).
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Exception re Minister

(7.1.1) Subsection (7.1) does not apply to an appeal by the Minister in respect of
an amendment described in clause (7.2) (d). 2018, c. 16, s. 8 (4).

Application of subs. (7.1)

(7.2) Subsection (7.1) applies in respect of amendments requested under
subsection (1) or (2) that propose to,

(a) alter all or any part of the boundary of an area of settlement in a municipality;

(b) establish a new area of settlement in a municipality;

(c) amend or revoke the policies described in subsection 16 (3), including, for
greater certainty, any requirements or standards that are part of such policies;
or

(d) authorize a renewable energy undertaking. 2006, c. 23, s. 11 (6); 2011, c. 6,
Sched. 2, s. 4; 2018, c. 16, s. 8 (5).

Same

(7.3) If the official plan contains policies dealing with the removal of land from
areas of employment, subsection (7.1) also applies in respect of amendments
requested under subsection (1) or (2) that propose to remove any land from an
area of employment, even if other land is proposed to be added. 2006, c. 23, s. 11

(6).”

The Planning Act provides that a council decision to refuse an OPA application
that would alter any part of a settlement area (urban area) boundary or to remove
land from an employment area cannot be appealed. However, if a decision on the
application is not made within the statutory timeframe (120 days), the application
could be appealed to the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal (LPAT) for non-decision.
It is therefore critical that any these types of OPA applications be brought forward
to Council for a decision within the timeframe.

Provincial Policy Statement (PPS)

The PPS (2014) provides policy direction regarding settlement area boundary
expansion and employment land conversion:

“1.1.3.8 A planning authority may identify a seftlement area or allow the expansion of
a settlement area boundary only at the time of a comprehensive review and
only where it has been demonstrated that:
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a. sufficient opportunities for growth are not available
through intensification, redevelopment and designated  growth  areas to
accommodate the projected needs over the identified planning horizon;

b. the infrastructure and public service facilities which are planned or available
are suitable for the development over the long term, are financially viable
over their life cycle, and protect public health and safety and the natural
environment;

c. in prime agricultural areas:
1. the lands do not comprise specialty crop areas;
2. alternative locations have been evaluated, and
i. there are no reasonable alternatives which avoid prime agricultural
areas; and,
ii. there are no reasonable alternatives on lower priority agricultural
lands in prime agricultural areas;

d. the new or expanding sefflement areais in compliance with the minimum
distance separation formulae; and

e. impacts from new or expanding sefflement areas on agricultural operations
which are adjacent or close to the sefflement area are mitigated to the extent
feasible.

1.3.2.1 Planning authorities shall plan for, protect and preserve employment areas for
current and future uses and ensure that the necessary infrastructure is provided
to support current and projected needs.

1.3.2.2 Planning authorities may permit conversion of lands within employment areas to
non-employment uses through a comprehensive review, only where it has been
demonstrated that the land is not required for employment purposes over the
long term and that there is a need for the conversion.”

The PPS (2014) is consistent with the previous version of the Growth Plan and only
permits a settlement area boundary to be expanded by a municipality at the time of a
comprehensive review. The same is true for employment land conversion. Staff
understand that the Province is currently reviewing the PPS and policy changes may be
forthcoming. Further, policy 5.2.1.2 of the Growth Plan indicates that a municipal
comprehensive review that is undertaken in accordance with the Growth Plan is
deemed to fulfil the requirements in the PPS to undertake a comprehensive review.
The Growth Plan requirements are discussed below.
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Growth Plan, 2019

“2.2.8 Settlement Area Boundary Expansions

2. A settlement area boundary expansion may only occur through a municipal
comprehensive review where it is demonstrated that:

a. based on the minimum intensification and density targets in this Plan and a land
needs assessment undertaken in accordance with policy 2.2.1.5, sufficient
opportunities to accommodate forecasted growth to the horizon of this Plan are
not available through intensification and in the designated greenfield area:

i. within the upper- or single-tier municipality,

b. the proposed expansion will make available sufficient lands not exceeding the
horizon of this Plan, based on the analysis provided for in policy 2.2.8.2 a), while
minimizing land consumption; and

c. the timing of the proposed expansion and the phasing of development within the
designated greenfield area will not adversely affect the achievement of the
minimum intensification and density targets in this Plan, as well as the other
policies of this Plan.

3. Where the need for a seftlement area boundary expansion has been justified in
accordance with policy 2.2.8.2, the feasibility of the proposed expansion will be
determined and the most appropriate location for the proposed expansion will be
identified based on the comprehensive application of all of the policies in this Plan,
including the following:

a. there is sufficient capacity in existing or planned infrastructure and public service
facilities;

b. the infrastructure and public service facilities needed would be financially viable
over the full life cycle of these assets;

c. the proposed expansion would be informed by applicable water and wastewater
master plans or equivalent and stormwater master plans or equivalent, as
appropriate;

d. the proposed expansion, including the associated water, wastewater and
stormwater servicing, would be planned and demonstrated to avoid, or if
avoidance is not possible, minimize and mitigate any potential negative impacts
on watershed conditions and the water resource system, including the quality and
quantity of water,
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e. key hydrologic areas and the Nafural Heritage System for the Growth Plan
should be avoided where possible;

f. prime agricultural areas should be avoided where possible. To support the
Agricultural System, alternative locations across the upper- or single-tier
municipality will be evaluated, prioritized and determined based on avoiding,
minimizing and mitigating the impact on the Agricultural System and in
accordance with the following:

i. expansion into specialty crop areas is prohibited;
ii. reasonable alternatives that avoid prime agricultural areas are evaluated; and

iii. where prime agricultural areas cannot be avoided, lower priority agricultural
lands are used;

g. the seftlement area to be expanded is in compliance with the minimum distance
separation formulae;

h. any adverse impacts on the agri-food network, including agricultural
operations, from expanding sefflement areas would be avoided, or if avoidance is
not possible, minimized and mitigated as determined through an agricultural
impact assessment,

i. the policies of Sections 2 (Wise Use and Management of Resources) and 3
(Protecting Public Health and Safety) of the PPS are applied;

j- the proposed expansion would meet any applicable requirements of the
Greenbelt, Oak Ridges Moraine Conservation, Niagara Escarpment, and Lake
Simcoe Protection Plans and any applicable source protection plan; and

4. Notwithstanding policy 2.2.8.2, municipalities may adjust seftflement area boundaries
outside of a municipal comprehensive review, provided:

a. there would be no net increase in land within seftlement areas;

b. the adjustment would support the municipality’s ability to meet the intensification
and density targets established pursuant to this Plan;

c. the location of any lands added to a seftlement area will satisfy the applicable
requirements of policy 2.2.8.3;

d. the affected seftlement areas are not rural settflements or in the Greenbelt Area;
and,

e. the seftlement area to which lands would be added is serviced by municipal
water and wastewater systems and there is sufficient reserve infrastructure
capacity to service the lands.
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5. Notwithstanding policies 2.2.8.2 and 5.2.4.3, a settlement area boundary expansion
may occur in advance of a municipal comprehensive review, provided:

a. the lands that are added will be planned to achieve at least the minimum density
target in policy 2.2.7.2 or 2.2.5.13, as appropriate;

b. the location of any lands added to a sefflement area will satisfy the applicable
requirements of policy 2.2.8.3;

c. the affected sefflement area is not a rural settlement or in the Greenbelt Area;

d. the seftlement area is serviced by municipal water and wastewater systems and
there is sufficient reserve infrastructure capacity to service the lands; and,

e. the additional lands and associated forecasted growth will be fully accounted for
in the land needs assessment associated with the next municipal comprehensive
review.

6. For a settlement area boundary expansion undertaken in accordance with policy
2.2.8.5, the amount of land to be added to the seftlement area will be no larger than
40 hectares.”

Policy 2.2.8.5 permits settlement area boundary expansion to occur in advance of the
MCR, provided that certain criteria are met, including the extensive criteria identified in
policy 2.2.8.3 (including consideration of servicing, infrastructure natural heritage, and
agricultural impacts). Policy 2.2.8.6 identifies that the maximum expansion are permitted
under policy 2.2.8.5 is 40 ha.

“2.2.5 Employment

9. The conversion of lands within employment areas to non-employment uses may be
permitted only through a municipal comprehensive review where it is demonstrated
that:

a. there is a need for the conversion;

b. the lands are not required over the horizon of this Plan for the employment
purposes for which they are designated;

c. the municipality will maintain sufficient employment lands to accommodate
forecasted employment growth to the horizon of this Plan;

d. the proposed uses would not adversely affect the overall viability of the
employment area or the achievement of the minimum intensification and density
targets in this Plan, as well as the other policies of this Plan; and
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e. there are existing or planned infrastructure and public service facilities to
accommodate the proposed uses.

10. Notwithstanding policy 2.2.5.9, until the next municipal comprehensive review, lands
within existing employment areas may be converted to a designation that permits
non-employment uses, provided the conversion would:

a. satisfy the requirements of policy 2.2.5.9 a), d) and e);

b. maintain a significant number of jobs on those lands through the establishment of
development criteria; and

c. not include any part of an employment area identified as a provincially significant
employment zone.”

Policy 2.2.5.10 allows lands within employment areas to be converted to a non-
employment designation, provided certain criteria are met, including a demonstrated
need for the conversion, identification that the conversion would not adversely impact
the employment area, and maintenance of a significant number of jobs. Further, lands
within a Provincially Significant Employment Zone (within Hamilton this is the Bayfront
Industrial Area, Stoney Creek Business Park, AEGD and Red Hill North and South)
cannot be converted in advance of the MCR.

Urban Hamilton Official Plan (UHOP)

The following policies regarding urban boundary expansion in the UHOP are under
appeal, but are provided for reference purposes (note these policies are the Ministry
modified policies which remain under appeal and are therefore informative but not
determinative when assessing applications to alter the urban boundary):

‘B.2.2.1 The exact limits of the lands to be included as part of the urban boundary
expansion shall be determined as part of a municipally initiated
comprehensive review and secondary plan.

B.2.2.2 No urban boundary expansion shall occur until a municipally initiated
comprehensive review and secondary plan have been completed.

B.2.2.3 Prior to the initiation of an urban boundary expansion, the City shall
undertake a municipally initiated comprehensive review and secondary
plan, in accordance with the policies of the Growth Plan for the Greater
Golden Horseshoe. As part of these processes, the City shall complete
background studies and conduct community planning and public
consultation events including the establishment of a community liaison
committee. The background studies and consultation processes shall
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assist in identifying the layout of future land uses, determining more
precise needs, land supply and infrastructure requirements, and
development of community growth management policies and designations.
More specifically, a municipally initiated comprehensive review and
secondary plan shall include the following elements:

a) a comprehensive review and land budget analysis is required to
determine the need for an urban boundary expansion, which includes
an assessment of occupied and vacant urban land, brownfield
availability, greenfield densities, and intensification targets to determine
if sufficient opportunities to accommodate forecasted growth contained
in Policy A.2.3.1 and Policy A.2.3.2 are not available [Mod 4(b)];

b) a sub-watershed plan to address storm water infrastructure and natural
heritage system impacts, in accordance with Section F.3.1.6 -
Watershed and Sub-watershed Plans;

c) Environmental Impact Statement(s) pertaining to the natural heritage
system, as required by applicable Official Plan and provincial policies;

d) in prime agricultural areas, the lands do not comprise specialty crop
areas, there are no reasonable alternatives that avoid prime agricultural
areas and there are no reasonable alternatives on lower priority
agricultural lands [Mod 4(c)];

e) demonstrating that impacts from new or expanding urban areas on
agricultural operations which are adjacent or close to the urban areas
are mitigated to the extent feasible; and,

i) the designation of appropriate land uses and policies pertaining to
the design and density of such uses;

i) completion of Class Environmental Assessments for major urban
servicing infrastructure deemed to be essential for commencement
or completion of development of all or part of the lands; and,

iii) an urban development staging, phasing or implementation strategy
in keeping with City-wide master plan priorities and secondary plan
objectives.

iv) the timing of the urban boundary expansion and the phasing of
development within the greenfield areas shall not adversely affect
the achievement of the residential intensification target and
Greenfield density targets [Mod 4(d)].
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f) completion of a financing policy for urban services and other community
infrastructure; and,

g) other studies and policies which the City deems necessary for the
development of the future urban growth district as a sustainable transit
oriented urban community.

h) the urban boundary expansion makes available sufficient lands for a
time horizon not exceeding 20 years, based on the analysis provided for

in Policy B.2.2.4-a)-B.2.2.3 a) [Mod 4 (e)]

The under appeal policies of the UHOP identify that an urban boundary expansion may
only occur through a municipally-initiated comprehensive review, and further identify
criteria for evaluation of such an expansion.

“F.1.1.6 In the absence of a Municipal Comprehensive Review as defined by Growth
Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe, there shall be no appeal with respect
to the refusal or failure of the City to adopt an Official Plan amendment for:

a) the redesignation, conversion or addition of non-employment land uses for
lands designated Employment Area — Industrial Land, Employment Area —
Business Park, Employment Area — Airport Business Park, or Employment
Area — Shipping and Navigation on Schedule E-1 — Urban Land Use
Designations; and,

b) the expansion of all or part of the urban boundary.”

Policy F.1.1.6 identifies the requirement that conversion of employment lands and urban
boundary expansion be considered only through a Municipal Comprehensive Review
and, in the absence of that review, there shall be no appeal in the refusal of such an
application.

RELEVANT CONSULTATION

The following Departments / Divisions were consulted in the preparation of this Report
to determine what studies / requirements would be requested in the review of an Official
Plan Amendment — Urban Boundary Expansion application, and further, if a peer review
of the required studies would be recommended:

Transportation Planning, Planning and Economic Development Department;
Growth Management, Planning and Economic Development Department;
Hamilton Water, Public Works Department;

Financial Planning and Policy, Corporate Services; and,

Procurement, Corporate Services.
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ANALYSIS AND RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

1. Planning staff were directed to report back to Planning Committee on the required
studies and a potential fee increase for the processing of Official Plan Amendment
applications for urban boundary expansions and employment land conversions.
The anticipated requirements and complexity of these two types of applications will
not be the same, and therefore this report considers them separately.

With regard to both types of application, it is imperative that the review of the OPA
application be completed in a timely manner and a decision is made on the
application within the legislated Planning Act timeframe (120 days). As noted, a
decision by Council to refuse to adopt an application for urban boundary expansion
or removal of employment lands cannot be appealed. However, if a decision is not
made within the timeframe, the application can be appealed for non-decision.

It is staff’'s opinion that such an appeal must be avoided. The requirement for staff
to respond to privately-initiated urban boundary expansion or employment land
conversion requests will already slow down the overall MCR project timeline. If
such an application is appealed to the LPAT, the project timeline could be impacted
further. This further delay would be due to staff time being required to respond to
the appeal, but also due to a potential impact on the City’s ability to finalize the
required Land Needs Assessment and review of growth options in light of an
ongoing appeal.

The shortened timeframe for decision making on Official Plan Amendments under
Bill 108 will add pressure and difficulty to the review of these applications. Within
the 120 day timeframe, the application will need to be deemed complete, circulated
internally and externally, studies reviewed (including peer reviews), report written
and reviewed, notice provided, and considered at Planning Committee and Council.
The recommendations contained in this report are intended to assist staff with
expediting the review of these applications.

2. Official Plan Amendment Applications for Urban Boundary Expansion
2.1 Required Studies

A request to expand the urban boundary, as per Growth Plan policy 2.2.8.4, has to
satisfy the requirements of the Settlement Area Boundary Expansion policies of the
Growth Plan (policies 2.2.8.2 and 2.2.8.3). Further, the UHOP policy B.2.2.3 (Council
approved but under appeal) outlines criteria that must be considered in the review of an
urban boundary expansion area. Based on these requirements, staff have identified the
following studies that are required in the review of a privately initiated urban boundary
expansion request:
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e Sub-watershed Study / Neighbourhood-scale Stormwater Management Study,
addressing:
- Surface water resources
- Groundwater
- Source protection planning study (Significant Groundwater Recharge Aquifers,
Highly Vulnerable Areas)
- Aquatic resources
- Species at risk
- Water quality
- Terrestrial ecology
- Fluvial geomorphology
- Sourcewater protection implications
e Water and Wastewater Servicing Study (network level capacity study including
existing trunk mains and sewers)
e Functional Servicing Report, addressing:
- Water and wastewater needs and servicing concepts, including required
municipal infrastructure internal and external to the development
- Watermain hydraulic modelling of applicable pressure zone
- Transportation '
- Grading and drainage
- Stormwater management
- Geotechnical and hydrogeology
Environmental Impact Statement and Linkage Assessment
Karst Assessment
Tree Protection Plan
Hydrogeological study
Financial Impact Analysis
Agricultural Impact Assessment
Minimum Distance Separation (MDS) calculation
Transportation Impact Study
Planning Justification Report
Parks Issues Assessment
Staging, implementation plan

In addition to the above, the following are additional documents required as part of the
review of an OPA application:

Draft Official Plan Amendment

Concept plan (high level secondary plan)
Public consultation strategy

Cultural Heritage Impact Assessment
Noise Impact Study
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Energy and Environmental Assessment Report

Cycling Route Analysis

Parking Analysis / Study

Pedestrian Route and Sidewalk Analysis

Roadway / Development Safety Audit

Modern Roundabout and Neighbourhood Roundabout Analysis
Neighbourhood Traffic Calming Options Report

Transit Assessment

Transportation Demand Management Report

Other information and materials

The requirement to undertake and submit the studies is based on site specific
circumstances, and not all of the above studies would be required for each application.
Additional studies could be required (see UHOP Table F.1.19.1) and would be identified
on a site specific basis. Staff are also contemplating the creation of guidelines for a
Climate Change Assessment report and adding that report to the list of studies in UHOP
Table F.1.19.1 through a future amendment. Once that process is completed, a Climate
Change Assessment could be added to the list of required studies for an Official Plan
Amendment — Urban Boundary Expansion application.

Prior to submitting an application for an Official Plan Amendment — Urban Boundary
Expansion, all applicants are required to submit an application for Formal Consultation
which will identify all of the studies and other materials required to accompany the
application.

At the Formal Consultation stage, staff will encourage the submission of an integrated
Municipal Class Environmental Assessment and Planning Act application to
comprehensively review the impacts of the proposal.

2.2 Peer reviews

Staff do not have the capacity to review all of the above noted studies. In some cases,
this is due to a lack of in-house expertise (eg. the review of Agricultural Impact
Assessments). In the majority of circumstances, the short review time provided under
the Planning Act requirements combined with limited staff resources will not allow for a
fulsome review. Peer reviews will therefore be required to assist in the review of the
submitted studies and provide feedback and technical expertise to assist staff.

UHOP policy F.1.19.7 allows the City to undertake a peer review of submitted studies
and materials, and this peer review is to be completed by a consultant retained by the
City, at the applicant’s expense. This is the normal course of action when a peer review
is required in the review of a planning application. The City acts as the ‘client’ on the
review, but the fees are paid by the applicant.
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Based on staff resources, workload and expertise, it is anticipated that the following
studies, at a minimum, may require a peer review to allow for evaluation within the
required timeframe:

Study Roster consultant
available?

Functional Servicing Report / Sub- Yes

watershed / SWM Study

Hydrogeological Study Yes

Transportation Impact Study Yes

Environmental Impact Study Yes

Linkage Assessment Yes

Financial Impact Assessment No — see
recommendation (c)

Agricultural Impact Assessment No — see
recommendation (c)

This list is preliminary and further studies may also require review depending on the
nature of the application and complexity of review required.

There are no rosters of consultants to undertake a peer review of financial impact
assessments or agriculture related matters (minimum distance calculations and
agricultural impact assessments). As a result, staff is requesting permission to:

1. Hire CN Watson (the firm completing the City’s Development Charges By-law) as
a sole source to the review of financial impact assessments for a period of 12
months and not to exceed $150,000;

2. Investigate and, if feasible, undertake a competitive Request for Proposal (RFP) to
establish a roster of consultants for Financial Impact Assessments similar to the
Professional and Consultant Services Roster 2019-2020 (C-12-06-18); and,

3. Expand the scope of work in Category 25 — Land Use Planning Services - Policy,
Zoning and Urban Design from the Professional and Consultant Services Roster
2019-2020 to include agricultural related planning matters. Agricultural
assessments are a common part of a land use planning review when lands are in
the Rural area. The three qualified roster consultants currently on the 2019-2020
Roster will be eligible for agricultural assignments provided the firm has the
necessary expertise. The consultants will be subject to the hourly rates and
disbursements in Contract C-12-06-18

To expedite the peer review process, staff recommend the creation of a Peer Review
Protocol including a Peer Review Cost Acknowledgement Agreement. This agreement

OUR Vision: To be the best place to raise a child and age successfully.
OUR Mission: To provide high quality cost conscious public services that contribute to a healthy, safe and prosperous
community, in a sustainable manner.
OUR Culture: Collective Ownership, Steadfast Integrity, Courageous Change, Sensational Service, Engaged
Empowered Employees.




Page 69 of 75

SUBJECT: Official Plan Amendment - Urban Boundary Expansion: Studies and
Fees (PED19146) (City Wide) - Page 17 of 20

will require the applicant to acknowledge and agree to the costs of the peer reviews.
The agreement will also outline the process for the return of unused fees, or conversely,
the requirement for the applicant to provide additional fees if needed. A standardized
template will be created for this agreement for ease of use. Once created, this
agreement will be reviewed by Legal. The signed agreement will form part of the
complete application requirement.

2.3 Fee structure

Due to the complexity of the application and the numerous studies and other materials
which will need to be reviewed, staff recommend that the fee for an Official Plan
Amendment — Urban Boundary Expansion be increased above the normal Official Plan
Amendment fee. The Planning and Economic Development Fee Structure already
recognizes that certain types of applications may require increased fees based on the
complex nature of the review, as is currently the case with applications for new or
expanded mineral aggregate operations which have increased Official Plan and Zoning
Amendment fees. It is recommended that a similar approach be taken with Urban
Boundary Expansion applications. The chart below summarizes the proposed change:

Standard Official Plan Official Plan Amendment — Urban
Amendment Boundary Expansion

Phase 1 $16,833 $56,204

Phase 2 $11,671 $11,671

Total $28,504 $67,875

The rationale for the increase in the application fee is that:

e Extra studies are required above and beyond studies that are required for a
standard Official Plan Amendment application. These extra studies include
Financial Impact Analysis, Agricultural Impact Assessment, Hydrogeological Study.

e Review of a high level secondary plan / concept plan submitted by the applicant.
This is a key difference between review of an Urban Boundary expansion OPA vs a
standard OPA. The expansion will be proposed on lands with no secondary plan or
applicable zoning to act as a guide in the review process.

e The servicing / infrastructure / transportation studies must be at the network level to
address network impacts related to capacity issues from the increased growth. The
required technical review of such studies is significant.

e Consideration of additional factors in the review process which are not normally
contemplated such as the integration of the new expansion area with surrounding
lands in terms of contribution to complete communities and proposed transportation
and infrastructure access; implications on the City’s overall land needs and land
supply; contribution to the City’s overall density targets; etc.
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Based on the above, it is anticipated that additional staff hours, across several
departments and divisions, will be required in the review of these applications. The
recommended fee increase reflects these requirements.

The application fee for the standard OPA is broken down into two phases. Phase 1 is
services up to the Council report, and Phase 2 is services subsequent to the council
resolution. It is proposed that the Urban Boundary Expansion OPA fee be broken down
into two phases consistent with the standard OPA. Should an application for an Official
Plan Amendment — Urban Boundary Expansion be denied by Council, the Phase 2
(post-Council decision) portion of the application fee will be refunded to the applicant.

The fees above do not include the fees for the completion of peer reviews, which as
noted, are separate and subject to the peer review cost agreement.

2.4 Summary of Recommendations — Urban Boundary Expansion OPA

In summary, the following are key recommendations to facilitate an expedited review of
Official Plan Amendment — Urban Boundary Expansion applications:

¢ Requirement for applicant to sign a Peer Review Cost Acknowledgement Agreement
as part of the complete application requirements. The agreement will outline the
terms and conditions of the peer review process.

o |dentify CN Watson as a peer reviewer of Financial Impact Assessments submitted
as part of the OPA — urban boundary expansion application because the City does
not have a consultant roster for this type of study. Further, expand the scope of the
land use planning roster category to include review of Agricultural Impact
Assessments and MDS calculations.

¢ Increase the application fee from $28,504 to $67,875 for an Official Plan Amendment
— Urban Boundary Expansion. This is reflective of the additional review time required
by staff across multiple divisions to respond to the application in a timely manner. It
is noted that the Phase 2 portion of this fee ($11,671) could be refunded if Council
denies the application.

See summary in Appendix “A” to Report PED19146.
3. Official Plan Amendment Applications for Employment Land Conversion
3.1 Employment Land Review - MCR

Through the background work on the MCR completed to date, staff have completed a
review of the City’s employment lands against established conversion criteria, and have
identified parcels which meet the criteria for potential conversion. This work has been
completed in draft form. Further, the City initiated a public call for requests for
employment land conversion in 2017, in which property owners could submit a request
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for conversion as part of the MCR for consideration by staff. A total of 19 requests were
received. An initial screening of the requests identified several parcels which would
require additional studies to support the proposal, including a Planning Justification
Report and Noise Impact Study. Staff have completed the review of these requests in
draft form.

As a result of this work already completed, the City has considerable knowledge about
potential conversion sites within the City’'s employment areas. Should a privately
initiated OPA be submitted for conversion of one of the sites already submitted through
the MCR process, there would not be a significant amount of additional review required
by staff above what has already been completed.

3.2 Pre-MCR Conversion Only Permitted Outside of PSEZs

As noted in the Policy section of this Report, the Growth Plan only permits the
conversion of employment land in advance of the MCR within employment areas that
are not Provincially Significant Employment Zones (PSEZs). Within Hamilton, the
following employment areas are not PSEZs:

e Flamborough Business Park
¢ Ancaster Business Park

¢ Dundas Industrial Area

e West Hamilton Innovation District

This restriction means that the number of potential OPA applications for employment
land conversion is limited. Of note, of the 19 requests for conversion received through
the public call for requests, only one was in an employment area that was not a PSEZ.

3.3 Studies and Review of Employment Land Conversion OPA Application

Unlike the application for urban boundary expansion, the list of special studies required
in the review of an employment land conversion application is more limited. It is
anticipated that the list of studies would include a Planning Justification Report, Noise
Impact Study, Servicing Study (to review system capacity based on proposed use),
Transportation Impact Study, and other studies which may be needed on a site specific
basis such as cultural or natural heritage studies. These studies are generally typical of
an OPA application. It is not anticipated that these studies would require peer review,
though the City reserves the right to request a peer review based on specific
circumstances if required.

3.4 Recommendation Regarding Employment Land Conversion OPA Fees

Staff are not recommending a fee increase above the standard OPA application fee for
an employment land conversion OPA application, based on the following:
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e Staff have already completed significant work on employment land review through
the MCR, and therefore already have significant information resources as a starting
point for any additional requests;

e The expected number of such applications is limited based on Growth Plan
restriction on conversion within PSEZs; and,

e The number and complexity of studies required for review is less than that of an
urban boundary expansion application and additional fees are not warranted. The
City reserves the right to request peer reviews of individual studies if required, at the
cost of the applicant, as is standard practice.

ALTERNATIVES FOR CONSIDERATION
The following alternatives could be considered:

1. Council could choose not to establish a separate fee for an Official Plan
Amendment — Urban Boundary Expansion; or,

2. Council could recommend a different fee for an Official Plan Amendment — Urban
Boundary Expansion; and / or,

3. Council could recommend a new fee for an Official Plan Amendment — Employment
Land Conversion.

ALIGNMENT TO THE 2016 — 2025 STRATEGIC PLAN

Community Engagement & Participation
Hamilton has an open, transparent and accessible approach to City government that
engages with and empowers all citizens to be involved in their community.

Economic Prosperity and Growth
Hamilfon has a prosperous and diverse local economy where people have opportunities
to grow and develop.

Clean and Green
Hamilton is environmentally sustainable with a healthy balance of natural and urban
spaces.

Built Environment and Infrastructure
Hamilfon is supported by state of the art infrastructure, transportation options, buildings
and public spaces that create a dynamic City.

APPENDICES AND SCHEDULES ATTACHED

Appendix “A” — Summary of Fees and Studies: Urban Boundary Expansion OPA
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Official Plan Amendment - Urban Boundary Expansion

1. Required Studies

Staff have identified the following studies that would be required in the review of a
privately initiated urban boundary expansion request:

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
¢ Functional Servicing Report, addressing:
- Water and wastewater needs and servicing concepts, including required
municipal infrastructure internal and external to the development
- Watermain hydraulic modelling of applicable pressure zone
- Transportation
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
Additional transportation-related studies

Other information and materials

The requirement for the studies above would be based on site specific circumstances,
and not all of the above studies would be required for each application. Further,
additional studies could be required (see UHOP Table F.1.19.1) and would be identified
on a site specific basis.

Prior to submitting an application for an Official Plan Amendment — Urban Boundary
Expansion, all applicants would be required to submit an application for Formal
Consultation which will identify all of the studies and other materials required to support
the application.

2. Peer reviews

Based on staff resources, workload and expertise, it is anticipated that the following
studies may require a peer review in order to allow for evaluation within the required
timeframe:

Functional Servicing Report / Sub-watershed Study / SWM Study
Hydrogeological Study

Transportation Impact Study

Environmental Impact Study

Linkage Assessment

Financial Impact Assessment

Agricultural Impact Assessment

This is a preliminary list and further studies may also require review depending on the
nature of the application and complexity of review required.

The applicant will be required to enter into a Peer Review Cost Acknowledgement
Agreement. This agreement will require the applicant to acknowledge and agree to the
costs of the peer reviews. The agreement will also outline the process for the return of
unused fees, or conversely, the requirement for the applicant to provide additional fees
if needed. A standardized template will be created for this agreement for ease of use.
The signed agreement will form part of the complete application requirement.
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3. Fee structure

Due to the complexity of the application and the numerous studies and other materials
which will need to be reviewed, the fee for an Official Plan Amendment — Urban
Boundary Expansion will be increased above the normal Official Plan Amendment fee.
The chart below summarizes the proposed change:

Standard Official Plan Official Plan Amendment —
Amendment Urban Boundary Expansion
Phase 1 $16,833 $56,204
Phase 2 $11,671 $11,671
Total $28,504 $67,875

Based on the complexity, it is anticipated that additional staff hours, across several
departments and divisions, will be required in the review of these applications. The
recommended fee increase reflects these requirements.

The application fee will be broken down into two phases. Phase 1 is services up to the
Council report, and Phase 2 is services subsequent to the council resolution. Should an
application for an Official Plan Amendment — Urban Boundary Expansion be denied by
Council, the Phase 2 portion of the application fee will be refunded to the applicant.

The fees above do not include the fees for the completion of peer reviews, which as
noted, are separate and subject to the peer review cost agreement.
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